SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
THI RD SPECI AL SESSI ON
Cct ober 27, 2015
3:05 p.m

3: 05: 04 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 3:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
Ofice of t he Gover nor ; Mar k Mers, Conmi ssi oner,
Departnent of Natural Resources; Senator Charlie Huggins;
Senator John Coghill; Senator Gary Stevens; Senator Ma
Costel | o; Senat or Cathy @G essel; Representative Liz
Vasquez.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Martin Schultz, Chief Assistant Attorney General, G, Gas,
and M ning Section, Departnent of Law, Dona Keppers, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Revenue.

SUMVARY

SB 3001 APPROP: LNG PRQIECT & FUND/ AGDC/ SUPP.

SB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.



APPROPRI ATI ON DETAILS: DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE
DEVEL OPMVENT, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, AND
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

#sb3001
SENATE BI LL NO. 3001

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations; making

appropriations to capitalize f unds; maki ng
appropriations to the general fund from the budget
reserve fund (art. 1X sec. 17, Constitution of the

State of Alaska) in accordance with sec. 12(c), ch. 1,
SSSLA 2015; and providing for an effective date.”

3:07:47 PM

NAPPROPRI ATI ON DETAILS: DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE
DEVEL OPVENT, DEPARTNMENT CF NATURAL RESOURCES, AND
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

3:07:55 PM

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF NMANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
(OwB), OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, relayed that additional
detail had been requested fromthe comrittee in response to
a an Cctober 25, 2015 PowerPoint presentation titled
"TransCanada and Pre- FEED  Suppl enent al Appropri ations
Summary" (copy on file). She noved to slide 7 and turned
the presentation over to the Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR).

MARK MYERS, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES,
| ooked at slide 7, "Department of Natural Resources State
Gas Team " He discussed that the supplenental budget was
derived out of a recognition that the department had
requested a budget of approximately $13 mllion for FY 16
and had been given $9 million with direction from the
|l egislature to nake a supplenental request if needed. He
relayed that DNR needed the additional noney. He detailed
that one of the primary reasons for the need was due to the
maj or negotiations involving the state gas team He pointed
to the slide and noted that a significant amount of noney
was needed for contractual services [$1.480 mllion] to
obtain individuals with the nobst expertise and experience.
He stressed that the state was taking on a commercial
enterprise and wanted to ensure that it had highly

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



gqualified individuals wth the appropriate industry
backgrounds and experience. He noted that the individuals
were expensive. He offered to detail qualifications needed
for specific positions at the request of committee nenbers.
He added that the departnment had benchmarked the costs of
the positions el sewhere in the industry.

Conmi ssi oner Myers communi cated that when he had worked as
the director of the Division of Gl and Gas in 2001, wth
the help of the legislature, the exenpt enployee structure
had enabled the departnent to hire individuals with 20 to
30 years of i ndustry experience (e.g. geol ogi st s,
geophysicists, and comercial analysts). He acknow edged
that the cost for these types of positions was high, but it
was hot possible to do the work wi thout individuals wth
the prerequisite experience. He explained that the slide
addressed the departnent's additional funding request
associated wth personal and contractual services. He
rel ayed that the structural neat of the negotiations was
currently being addressed. Negotiations included the
overall governance structure and oil and gas bal ancing. He
detailed that with oil and gas balancing it could not be
guaranteed that the pipeline capacity was full or that the
gas was available to buyers. Additional itenms were related
to the security of supply and matching out supply. He noted
that because the state was not a producer it required sone
special conditions to guarantee its supply.

3:11: 50 PM

Comm ssioner Myers stated that the gas bal anci ng agreenent
and governance structures were fundanental conponents of
the deal, which were still in negotiation; the itens
provided a structural framework for negotiating other terns
such as the lease nodifications. He relayed that to create
a predictable state gas volune it was necessary to convert
its net profit and sliding scale |leases to a flat royalty.
He specifically referred to |lease terns at Point Thonson;
negotiations were currently wunder way, wth ExxonMbi

taking the lead. The state had agreed to a volunetric
structure for the |l eases. He noted that with the net profit
share lease it was necessary to make an assunption about
costs associated with the |lease. He explained that with a
sliding scale royalty it was necessary to understand the
appropriate allocation of cost associated with the |ease

He remarked that it was a conplicated negotiation that was
somewhat dependent on the oil price prediction. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



reiterated that the negotiations were currently underway,
whi ch required experienced geol ogi st s, engi neers,
geophysicists, and commercial analysts. He noted that the
department was utilizing the expertise of enployees under
the Division of Gl and Gas, who had been taken away from
their other commercial work. He explained that two of the
departnment's three commercial analysts were fully engaged
in the AKLNG work and were not able to perform their work
associated wth other oil and gas issues.

Comm ssioner Mers addressed other positions specific to
liquid natural gas (LNG and relayed that one of the
bi ggest increases was the need to start devel oping the gas
mar keti ng organization. He explained that the reason to
begin the work was due to the fact that the state had to
build sone type of gas marketing organization. He
el aborated that the type of organization was dependent on
how the state chose to market under a royalty in kind (RIK)
situation. GCenerally the state's default position was a
joint venture marketing structure where it would share the
mar keting with the producers. He furthered that the state's
perfect world would be for all three producers and the
state to lunp their gas together for marketing as a group

He explained that the structure would nmean |less interna

conpetition, cargo could be maximzed, balancing would be
less of an issue, and it would enable the optimzation of
the project to the market. Additionally, security of supply
would be better for the market. The advantage of the
structure to the state was that it would benefit from the
expertise of the conpanies; the state would enbed people
W th expertise within the conpanies' structure. However, it
was unlikely that all four conpanies would agree to joint
venture marketing; sone |liked equity marketing better and
ot hers could be concerned about antitrust issues with the
| arge anount of gas comi ng to market.

Comm ssi oner Myers continued that there were many
conditions and the state could not guarantee that it would
get to the joint venture marketing solution. He relayed
that the state may end up with several joint marketing
deals with producers, which would require the state to have
a marketer in each of the deals. Additionally, buyers
wanted to be assured of supply; long-term custonmers would
bring expertise to look at the reservoir to understand the
deliverability. Ther ef or e, DNR needed an upstream
geoscientist and engineer in order to warranty supply to
the people. He explained that the conpanies would also

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



second expertise into their structure or would provide
access to the upstream conponent. He relayed that it was
inportant to bring the first |leader into the structure at
present because once the project entered the FEED [Front
End Engineering and Design] structure, negotiations wth
the market would begin and the structure wth producers
woul d be established. He furthered that the |ead person
would go to buyers in the eastern markets to show them the
state had a confident supply; the process would occur in
cooperation with other conpanies if there was a joint
venture marketing agreenent. He stated that because the
project made the state one of the |largest gas nmarketers in
the world, the lead person would need to be very credible
to the market; therefore, the individual's salary would be
significant. He added that the salary had been benchmarked
through a conpany called Human Capital (a |eading provider
of recruitnment for the oil and gas business in Houston,
Texas and internationally) using the standards for soneone
with 10 to 15 years of LNG experience. The structure
included slightly higher pay for Al aska due to the state's
hi gher cost of living. He noted that the salary may not
reach the highest anmpunt specified, but the state did not
know, the salary was based on what consultants had
specified as realistic for a | ead marketer and anal yst.

3:17:23 PM

Comm ssioner Mers discussed the different contractors
within the organizational <chart of the gas team He
referenced Greengate LLC as an exanple, which had presented
on financial conponents of the project earlier that day.
O her contractors were LNG experts with 15 to 20 years of
experience. Additionally, the state had a contractor wth
specialty in LNG transport. He cited Black and Veatch as
anot her contractor for the state. He stressed that the
state heavily relied on the individuals in negotiations.

Senator Dunleavy referred to the "State of Al aska AKLNG
Integrated State Gas Teant organizational chart dated
Cct ober 26, 2015 (copy on file). He noted that there were
five boxes (including the governor) in the "decision
makers" category at the top of the chart. He asked for
verification that it was accurate.

Comm ssioner Myers replied in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Senat or Dunleavy asked if the Al aska Gasline Devel oprment
Corporation (AGDC) board was a decision mnmaker through
Dani el Fauske (AGDC president) or if M. Fauske acted
i ndependent | y. He not ed t hat AGDC al so appear ed
occasionally in other |locations in the organizational
chart. He asked for a description of AGC s role in the
deci si on maki ng process.

Commi ssioner Myers preferred that AGDC answer the question,
but relayed that he would explain AGDC s role from his
perspective. He discussed that the design under SB 138
[legislation passed in 2014 related to a gas pipeline,
AGDC, and oil and gas production tax] was that the
Iiquefaction plant and potentially the pipeline and GIP
[gas treatnment plant] conponents (i.e. the transportation
system) would be nmanaged through AGC. He |ooked at
negotiations with the producers who were involved in the
operational conponent of the project on the nmanagenent
commttee. He noted that DNR did not have a seat on the
managenent conmm ttee, but AGDC did; t her ef ore, t he
information would flow through AGDC with respect to the
issues he had outlined. Essential ly, AGDC was the
infrastructure owner; whereas, DNR s responsibility was for
many of the upstream issues and the narketing conponents.
He el aborated that DNR woul d be the upstream managenent and
the transportation corporation, which was a very separate
entity from AGDC s rol e.

3:20: 54 PM

Senator Dunl eavy asked if M. Fauske was speaking on behalf
of AGDC or independently as the head of the corporation.
Conmi ssioner Mers asked for verification that Senator
Dunl eavy was asking about the role of the AGDC board versus
the role of the AGXC president.

Senator Dunleavy replied in the affirmative. Conm ssioner
Myers answered that he could not answer the question
because he was not personally on the AGC board and did not
interface with the board. His correspondence with AGDC was
limted to comunication with M. Fauske, Joe Dubler (vice
president and chief financial officer), and Frank Richards
(vice president of engineering and program managenent).

Senator Dunleavy wondered if sone of the positions,

especially in the lower portion of the chart, represented
contractors. He asked how nmuch funding was attributed to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



each of the positions and if each of the bl ocks represented
a full-tinme position, contractor, or state enployee. He
observed that there were many conpany titles included.

Conmi ssioner Myers stated that the blue blocks represented
contractors and the green were state enployees. On a |ong-
term basis, the state envisioned that some of the blue
bl ocks would turn to green. He explained that sone of the
positions included under project areas would go away once
there was a project. He shared that the producer and state
integrated teans including EAGR [External Affairs and
Gover nrent Rel ati ons], expansi on, fi nance, fiscals,
governance, and in-state gas, typically had individuals
engaged from DNR, the Departnent of Revenue, the Depart nent
of Law, consultants, and sonetinmes conbined with AGDC.
However, nost frequently the negotiating teans for the
upstream comercial, and marketing issues did not involve
AGDC. He expounded that because TransCanada was currently
representing the pipe, expansion discussion was done out of
the DNR, DOR, and DOL team and consultants w th TransCanada
related to pipeline size, conpr essor stations, and
geot echni cal issues. He reasoned that once the pipeline was
constructed there would be no reason for DNR to have a
pi peline contractor; if the TransCanada buyout occurred,
the individual would be the responsibility of AGC He
reiterated that some of the roles were tenporary through
the negotiations and would switch over once pipeline
construction began. He explained that the issues would be
negotiated for the wupstream piece, but then under the
buyout AGDC would gain additional responsibilities to
manage it.

3:24:13 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy di scussed that the past session the Senate
had nmade significant reductions and had been told that it
had gone too far to some extent. He elaborated that the
| egislature was currently addressing the proposal to add
funding for needed individuals with expertise. He surm sed
that the administration would probably get questions about
how the state would pay for the increase. He wondered if
the funds would cone out of the existing budgets. He
believed that as the cost grew there would cone a point
where the state had to consider other things it could put
aside in order to pay for the project. He was interested in
getting nore information on salaries for the positions
shown in the organizational chart.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Co-Chair MacKinnon appreciated that Marty Rutherford,
Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources had
provided the organizational chart the previous day. She
di scussed that the information was a start towards hel ping
the |legislature wunderstand the inner workings of the
departnment's work on standing up a comercially ready
project and the technical expertise to work on the state's
behalf. She noted that the organizational chart was
avail able online for the public. She asked for verification
that sone of the state enployee positions (represented in
green) had been filled and others were vacant.

Comm ssioner Myers replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for verification that nost of the
contractor positions had already been filled (shown in
bl ue). Conm ssioner Myers answered in the affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked for confirmation that the orange
bl ocks on t he chart represented AGDC enpl oyees.
Comm ssioner Myers replied that he did not know if sone of
t he orange bl ocks were contracted enpl oyees.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the chart included several
groups of lines to indicate decision nmakers. She noted that
t he governor was at the top of the chart with the foll ow ng
deci si on makers: Craig Ri chards, At t or ney Ceneral ,
Depart nent of Law, Randal | Hof f beck, Comm ssi oner,
Depart mnent of Revenue; Mark Myers, Commi ssioner, Departnent
of Natural Resources; and Daniel Fauske, President, Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnment Cor porati on.

3:27:43 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon addressed SB 3001, Section 1, subsection
b. She explained that the adm nistration was proposing an
addi tional appropriation of $13,607,000. She noted that
subsection ¢ specified that DNR woul d receive $2, 126, 000 of
the funds. She asked if the funding would be considered a
one-time or recurring appropriation.

Comm ssioner Mers replied that the funds would be
recurring at least into the FY 17 budget related to
negotiator positions. He elaborated that the permanent
positions (e.g. the gas nmarketer) would be recurring |ong-
term as the structure was built out. The contractual

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



conmponent would recur until the negotiation support was no
| onger needed.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the benefit of a narketing
position filled by a state enployee versus a contractor
She noted that the state wuld not have a pension
obligation for an enployee if they worked for ten years
but it would have a health obligation to the enpl oyee. She
reasoned that the project was about ten years out. She
wondered what a person making $860,000 (as suggested in a
recent newspaper) wuld do to the state's healthcare
system She asked for additional information on the
decision to hire someone as an enployee versus a
contractor.

Comm ssioner Mers replied that wth respect to health
i nsurance, the salary would not really affect an enployee's
health benefits because they were not wunder the Defined
Benefit programor Tier IV. He noted that the state did pay
22 percent for Tier 1V, but it covered other enployees
under Tiers | through I1l. He strongly believed in having
enpl oyees [involved] due to accountability to the state. He
detailed that the chief marketer would be negotiating deals
in the billions of dollars in the long-term on behalf of
the state. He stated that sonetimes contractors came and
went and even the best ones may not be retained | onger than
six nmonths to one year. He stressed the inportance of
continuity. He noted that it was possible to build an
organi zation that included contractors, but the core | eader
needed to be an exceptional person. He noted that it was
possible to have technical enployees who were very good

but were | ousy managers or team builders. He furthered that
the state was looking for wunique attributes in the key
| eader: someone who could build a team was held
accountable to the people of Alaska, and would be on the
project long-term He remarked that the state wanted a
sense of "golden handcuffs"™ around the Kkey |eadership
positions. He did not believe all of the individuals in the
organi zation had to be enployees. However, in the past two
negotiations the state had hired world-class consultants,
but had then lost the expertise and had to start over on
the cycle. He reiterated the inportance of continuity of
effort, |eadership capacity, and technical expertise for
the lead position. He added the individual should live in
Al aska whil e doing the job.

3:32: 07 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the approximte nunber of
enpl oyees DNR was proposing to bring on for the marketing
team She asked what the finance subconm ttees could expect
to see as an wunderlying recurring cost to support the
project (associated with DNR only). Comm ssioner Mers
answered that the marketing organization would depend on
how the state chose to market. He detailed that many nore
personnel would be needed if the state chose to equity
mar ket. He explained that under equity marketing the team
woul d need to be independent and autononous with respect to
building a core capacity. He furthered that under equity
marketing the state would be doing billion dollar-type
deals in the marketplace, which would require individuals
to work on a multitude of contracts. He added that the
state would be doing the marketing by itself. Under joint
venture marketing, the state wuld need far fewer
i ndi vi dual s because its individuals would be seconded into
a team Under the scenario, the team would consist of a
| eader, a lower paid analyst, geoscientist and engineer
(for upstream assurance of deliverability), and an
assistant. He elaborated that if there were two joint
venture marketing deals the state would need a couple of
additional individuals (for a total of 6 or 7 positions)
He relayed that the state did not foresee a very large
organi zation built for marketing under the joint venture
mar keting profile it hoped to achieve.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked for verification that the term
"secondees” pert ai ned usi ng enpl oyees from anot her
organi zation for their expertise for a limted anmount of
time on a project. She asked Commi ssioner Mers to expand
on the definition.

Comm ssioner Mers replied with an exanple about the
Prudhoe Bay oil field managed by BP. He explained that the
wor ki ng interest owners included ConocoPhillips and
ExxonMbbi | . He furthered that wunder nmanagenent when
decisions were made nost of the individuals in the
structure were BP enployees, but there were engineers and
geologists from the other conpanies as well who were
assigned and worked as part of the team He explained that
seconded neant that the enployees were paid by their parent
organi zation to nove into the joint venture organization.
He referenced the Alyeska Pipeline Service Conpany as
anot her exanple; there were enployees working in the
conpany from other conpanies. He furthered that the state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



would take a state-paid enployee and put them into the
structure of the overall marketing infrastructure. Under
joint venture marketing the state and producers could
nom nate parties for contracts and the group would then
decide the best optimzation of the contracts. The
advantage of having a state enployee seconded into the
organi zation was total transparency in the data. He
expl ai ned that because it was a joint organization there
would be Iimted duplication. He noted that the state would
need at |east one senior person who was seconded or |iving
in the joint venture marketing organi zati on.

3:36: 08 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche shared that one of his fears was about
not taking full advantage of the partnership. He noted that
three of the involved conpanies had decades of oil and gas
experience. He was hopeful there would not be any redundant
positions, where the need for the state could be nmet by
seconded individuals into AKLNG He queried the exercise
did DNR undertake to determne which positions the state
woul d need under its unbrella versus being seconded from
t he ot her organi zati ons.

Comm ssioner MWers replied that the departnent asked
outside consultants to look at LNG experts. Additionally,
the departnent used its internal LNG expert Audie Setters
to help design the mninmum system He elaborated that the
departnment had assuned the fewest nunber of enployees
possi bl e, under the nost efficient structure - the single
joint venture nmarketing structure. He stressed that the
state had to have soneone working inside the joint venture
structure. He noted that the departnent felt that it was a
smal ler structure, which was its baseline assunption. The
departnment al so needed enployees ready to go in case the
structure did not happen. He noted that DNR did not believe
it needed a geologist or engineer right away, but the
positions would ultimately be needed. The key had been to
hire the |lead position to build up the appropriate
structure in the beginning of the FEED structure (once the
mar keting structure had been negotiated). He rem nded the
commttee that a joint venture marketing structure would
require only a few additional enployees; however, under an
equity marketing structure it would require a nuch |arger

self-sustaining organization. He noted that an -equity
mar keting structure was not DNR s preference; however, he
noted that there were other people who believed an equity

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



structure would be nore beneficial to the state. He
el aborated that it would be possible to do a conbination of
the structures. Additionally, DNR was aware that how the
state chose to nmarket mmy inmpact how the project financing
wor ked. He explained that there had been discussion about
sone equity going to other parties. He concluded that from
the perspective of the team and consultants, joint venture
mar keting woul d be the | owest cost with the |east nunber of
enpl oyees. He spoke to the inportance of a lead position to
construct the necessary conmponents and to help the state
negotiate with the producers. He noted that the state also
needed a marketing professional to start going to the
market to warranty the gas. He added that the nmarketing
pr of essi onal should be soneone well known in the market and
not hinmself or someone else on the state's team

3:39: 23 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked if a new position would be
created [on the organizational chart] for a team wth
responsibilities associ at ed W th construction due
diligence. Conm ssioner Mers replied that the departnent
had assuned the specific work would be done through the
AGDC structure. He enphasized the inportance of ensuring
transparency between AGC and the DNR, DOR, DOL team The
state's assunption was that AGC would have people in the
project on the pipeline and GIP side. He explained that DNR
felt it was critical to have experts on the comerci al
areas of in-state gas expansion while the negotiations were
underway. Additionally, the state wanted the technical
expertise (such as Pat Anderson) during the review of a 48-
inch versus a 42-inch pipe to represent the broader state
interests. He detailed that a pipeline interest would not
necessarily represent al | of the state's upst ream
interests. The producers were particularly interested in
the production fromthe two fields. The state also had that
interest, but it wanted to be assured there was capacity
for the other gas on the North Slope. He referred to a
di scussion earlier in the day wth the Alaska Gl and Gas
Conservation Conmi ssion (AOGCC) on the resources. He
relayed that there was about 50 trillion cubic feet (tcf)
of proven resource on the North Slope and potentially up to
200 tcf nore in undiscovered resource. He stated that the
nunbers were very large and the state wanted to ensure
there was capacity. He noted that no determ nation had been
made, but the state wanted to understand the ability to
expand. The ability to expand depended on whether the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



infrastructure was built correctly to make expandability
reasonable in economc sizes and whether the comerci al
arrangenent allowed for it.

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that there were several state
enpl oyees that would probably not be necessary even in the
| ater stages of FEED, expansion, governance, and perhaps
regul atory. He reasoned that state bureaucracies were
resistant to elimnate positions, but its head count was
expensi ve. He wondered what woul d happen with the positions
as stages of the project were phased out.

Comm ssi oner Myers believed the organi zation should be fit
for the purpose at the tinme the capacity was needed. As
constructed, the AKLNG office would cease to exist if the
proj ect was successful at the operational stage. As various
negoti ations were finished certain associated work would no
| onger be needed. For exanple, when PILT was fully decided,
DNR s current work on the subject would becone unnecessary.
The organization would be adjusted appropriately at the
right phase. He noted that the operational marketing
organi zation had yet to be built (currently the state had a
negotiating organization). He expected the structure to
| ook very different when the project reached the next
phases.

3:43:19 PM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche surmsed that each box on the
organi zational chart represented a decrease in the ultimte
value from AKLNG He remarked that one of the fears
di scussed around potential new revenue was the decrease in
val ue caused by a bloated bureaucracy. He noted that the
structure may not be bloated in the organizational chart
before the conmttee; he had significant faith in
Comm ssioner Mers' abilities. He hoped the departnent
would do its best to keep the organizational structure
| ean.

Senat or Bishop conmented that in relation to the gasline
the current cost would probably be the cheapest check the
| egi slature would wite until the state nade a gas sale. He
asked if his statenent was accurate.

Comm ssioner Myers replied that because the state would be

a partner with only 25 percent of the infrastructure that's
where the ~costs would shift. He detailed that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



transition from pre-FEED to FEED would greatly increase the
engi neering and devel opnent costs. He stated that when the
full stage was reached, even though the state was
financing, it would still be witing a very |arge check. He
stressed that the project entailed a huge level of capita
investnment. He stated that when it canme to the enployee
costs the focus should be on AGDC s budget because it would
house the mpjority of the enployees. Under a TransCanada
buyout scenario the state's 25 percent interest in the
capital costs would reside with AGC He stated that the
value was in the upstream gas. He furthered that the state
would be in good shape if it negotiated well, a well-
functioning marketing organization had been created, and
the right kind of conmmercial arrangenments had Dbeen
est abl i shed.

Comm ssioner Mers discussed the inportance of having the
state's comercial negotiations lead to verifiable and
straight forward outcomes. He stressed that he did not want
to skinp on the l|lawers and external experts at present
because the state wanted to build durable agreenents that
woul d not take extra auditing or confusion. He relayed that
one of the reasons for RIK was to elimnate some of the
problens the state had with checking valuation. However,
the state needed to be conpetent at narketing gas or it
could have a catastrophic failure. He reiterated the
i nportance of building a durable framework in the joint
venture marketing structure. He stated that a durable,
fair, transparent organization was critical, which took
significant work given the nunber of involved parties. Once
the framework had been established, the state's operational
team could really shrink. He noted that building the right
managemnent agreenents based on what the state had
historically learned was incredibly inportant. He stated
that the structure would be easier to nanage from an
upstream royalty accountability and tax accountability
because of the gas conversion. He stressed that the state
had to be very conpetent as an oil and gas conpany in terns
of running the infrastructure. Additionally, the state's
mar keti ng had to be very good.

3:47: 22 PM

Senator Bishop agreed. He wondered if M. Mers would
personal |y doubl e check resunes before a final decision was
made when hiring for positions pertaining to DNR
Conmi ssioner Myers replied in the affirmative. He stated

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



that the departnment would I|ook hard at applicants'
techni cal qualifications.

Senat or Bi shop appreci ated Comm ssioner Myers' comments. He
stressed that the organizational chart was just a piece of
paper unless the state had good people in the positions.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon asked for verification that t he
$2, 126,000 for DNR (in SB 3001) was to create a marketing
team and that the analysis supported the request.

Comm ssioner Mers replied that there were multiple
conponents related to the appropriation. He detailed that
the docunent provided to the commttee went through the
specifics [four-page docunent provided to the conmttee
from the Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget on OCctober 25,
2015 titled "FY2016 Suppl enental Request for State Agencies
- $13.6 MlIlion." (copy on file)]. He comunicated that
$646, 000 would go to nmarketing and $900,000 would go to
contractual services. He addressed existing contracts and
listed the follow ng: Audie Setters worked on narketing and
had taken a leadership role within DNR historically; Deepa
Poduval with Black and Veatch; Radislov Shipkoff wth
Greengate LLC provided financial advising; Nan Thonpson
(former oil and gas attorney and current Enstar vice
president) had been hired to as the lead to wite a finding
to help achieve a decision on R K, Pat Anderson (forner
TransCanada vice president on Arctic pipelines) with Pingo
resour ces; Si mon  Li si ecki (former vice president of
shipping for an LNG conpany) was working on LNG shipping
and financing marketing; and Steve Swaffield (fornmer BG
Canada Group president) was working on conmerci al
financing; Steve Wight (forner Chevron Al aska manager and
petroleum geologist) was DNR s overall coordinator. In
order to save noney and keep the head count down, DNR had
been pulling significant expertise out of its Division of
Ol and Gas. He detailed that two of the division's three
commercial anal ysts were spending 80 to 90 percent of their
time on AKLNG project related work (nmeaning the individuals
were not available on the oil side when needed). He
el aborated that the individuals conducted the economc
anal ysis on |ease sales and royalty reopeners. He stressed
that it was necessary to find a way to fund the work that
needed to be done in the Division of G| and Gas in
addition to its work.

3:51: 07 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that there had been a footnote
showing a $4 nmillion credit from TransCanada. She asked how
the adm nistration would audit the bills from TransCanada
in order to ensure double paynment was not made and that
conpl ete paynents were nade. She thought she had heard that
the $4 mllion had been paid and that it was being carried
forward as a credit. She attributed the question to Senator
Bert St edman.

Ms. Pitney replied that there was a $4 million credit and a
$3 mllion cost (there had been an offset as a result). She
deferred to Conmm ssioner Mers regarding the audit portion
of the question.

Comm ssi oner Myers answered that the departnment was worKking
to obtain the final nunbers in order to answer the
guestion. He had learned that there had been a six nonth
period wunder AG A where work on AKLNG had started

therefore, there was sone credit for the work on the
state's side and sone credit to TransCanada for work that
had not been paid under the AG A license. He explained that
the itens subtracted out. He had been asked if there was
any overhead. As far as he knew, the 7.1 percent interest
did not apply to those dollars. However, there had been an
overhead associated with AG A that did apply. He expl ai ned
that it was transitional period noney and the exact details
woul d be obtained as the state worked through it.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the process used by DNR to
ensure there was not a bill payi ng duplication.
Comm ssioner Mers replied that DOR was conducting the
audits and would better suited to answer the question. He
rel ayed that had spoken with TransCanada and the state had
commercial experts working on the team who were | ooking at
a payout to TransCanada followed by an audit and reopener
with the audit. He elaborated that the state would pay out
TransCanada and it would then have a certain anmount of tinme
to conduct the full audit with a true up at the end of the
audit. He conmuni cated that TransCanada was anmenable to the
process and he believed the state would be as well, but the
process had not been formalized. He comrunicated that the
state wanted to tine the paynents to allow the work plan
and budgets to be voted on and so AGDC had the noney for
the work plan and budget. TransCanada wanted to be paid
before it voted on the work plan and budget for the state
or turned the right over to AGDC.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



3:54: 59 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the vote [on the work plan and
budget] was schedul ed for Decenber 4, 2015. Conm ssioner
Myers answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expl ained that the itenms outlined in the
docunent provided by OVMB typically came in the form of a
fiscal note. She wondered if the conmttee would see a
fiscal note.

Ms. Pitney responded that she was uncertain a fiscal note
was the appropriate format; however, there was a change of
record backup docunent show ng the detail.

Co-Chair MacKinnon replied that the commttee would work
with the Legislative Finance Division on the appropriate
docunentation. She thanked Conm ssioner MWers for his
presentation. She relayed that the commttee was stil
working to understand the organizational chart related to
the specific hierarchy. She explained that on other
projects there may be each of the conponents broken out in
an individual organizational chart showing who positions
reported to and how the voting rights were assigned. For
exanple, Senator Bishop had asked if Joe Dubler [Vice
President and Chief Financial Oficer, AGC] consulted with
AGDC  staff, t he deci si on maker s (shown on t he
organi zational <chart), or from the AGDC board before
casting a vote on behalf of the state.

3:57:18 PM

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the organizational chart
represented the ideal staffing or the bare mninmum for DNR
to do the job

Comm ssioner Myers replied that he did not know a | ot about
how AGDC was constructed and could not address that portion
of the chart. He stated that the DNR positions on the chart
represented the team that was needed. He stressed the
i mense nature of the negotiations. He stated that until
one | ooked "under the hood" it was not possible to realize
just how conplex and difficult the negotiations were. He
stated that there were four parties that did not agree on
much, which were trying to reach alignnent on huge issues
with rmajor uncertainty surrounding the issues. He
guar ant eed t hat t he producers' t eans made t he

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



organi zational chart before the conmittee |ook mniscule.
He comuni cated that DNR was relying heavily on consultants
and would not have the ability to undertake the work wth
only a state team the state did not have the availability
of expertise to hire the right people and to get them in
pl ace as long-term enployees. He stated that it was the
"coalition approach” where it was necessary to bring in the
best expertise possible to push as hard as possible. He
stated that it was one big push that would |ast nonths;
therefore, it was necessary to lock-in the high end
consul tants, which neant the contract noney was critical.

Comm ssi oner Myers addressed efficiency in negotiations and
acknowl edged that negotiations had been scattered. He
stated that everyone was still learning how to "crack the
nut" in ternms of critical issues such as governance and gas
bal ancing. He used a Super Cub airplane as an anal ogy. He
expl ai ned that the Super Cub's strength was in its frane,
but it would not fly wthout fabric on its w ngs; however
the fabric could not be installed before the frame was
created. He explained that there were certain structural
framework agreenents that needed to fall into place and
there were other conmercial agreenents that were needed
prior to doing the finding. He explained that it was not
possible to speculate on sone of the huge values and a
conditional finding would not be satisfactory to nany
people. He stated that he ready to get the skin on the
pl ane as soon as possible, but first the frame had to be
assenbled. He reiterated that a team of the size shown on
t he organi zati onal chart was needed to build the franmework.
He stressed the need for outside consultants and remarked
that people were working an extraordi nary nunber of hours.
He relayed that many of the state's enployees were working
a significant amount of unpaid overtine.

Conmi ssioner Myers continued that it was necessary for the
state to keep checking itself to ensure accuracy. He
stressed the conplexity of the negotiations. He believed
the positions shown on the organizational chart represented
the right balance for the state (not an over bal ance).

4:01: 05 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy encouraged the inclusion of a fiscal note.
He wondered where the admnistration believed the noney
would conme from to pay for the bill. M. Pitney replied
that the funding would conme from the Constitutional Budget

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Reserve (CBR) savings. She explained that the funds would
require a najority vote because there was a buffer of $500
mllion from previous l|egislation and FY 16; however, it
woul d result in an additional draw from savi ngs.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that in the comng year the
Senate Finance Committee would be asked to [|ook at
alternative revenue sources (primarily the Permanent Fund
and taxes). He wondered if there were any additional
efficiencies that could be garnered in the admnistration
that could render some noney to pay for sonme of the project
costs. He did not believe many people believed it was the
last tinme noney would be requested for potential expansion
in various areas needed to support the pipeline.

Ms. Pitney replied that there had been significant work on
efficiencies to date. The budget reduction between FY 15
and FY 16 for agency operations exceeded $340 nillion
including an unallocated $30 nmillion reduction. She
stressed that the admnistration was |ooking for all
possible savings and intended to submt addi ti onal
reductions going into the FY 17 budget. She enphasi zed t hat
the administration was |ooking for every opportunity to
reduce the cost of governnent. She furthered that the
tradeoff of funding the project and its potential for |ong-
term revenue to the state was imense. She continued that
the project was an area that required investnent; at the
sane tinme the admnistration was taking significant
reductions in the current fiscal year and was proposing
addi ti onal agency reductions in the com ng year.

4:04: 08 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon addressed the state's preferred joint
mar keti ng agreenent structure. She asked if there would be
a possibility of downsizing the expensive marketing
position once the agreenments were reached. Alternatively,
she wondered if the position would be long-term with |ess
expense going towards the positions if the state was able
to establish joint marketing terns.

Comm ssioner Mers believed one critical person at the
senior level was inportant. He was uncertain of the salary
and the departnment would do the best it could. He explained
that the included salary was closer to the upper end of the
range that had conme from the consultants' reports. He
rel ayed that the petroleum geol ogists who had been hired

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



were not paid anywhere near industry wage; however, they
were paid significantly nore than the other enployees. He
communi cated that senior petrol eum geol ogi sts and engi neers
were paid between $200,000 and $300,000 per year in Al aska
(the salaries in Houston, Texas were very simlar). The
state was also looking for the |eadership piece on top of
the other positions. He relayed that consultants |ike M.
Setters would exceed the salaries if consultants were
mai ntained (the hourly cost was very high). The other
chall enge with LNG marketing was that marketers were paid a
significant bonus, which could easily equal close to the
person's total salary depending on the year. He did not
believe it was a good nodel for the state to be offering
those types of bonuses; therefore, it was necessary to up
t he base salary to offset.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon addressed the technical expertise that
would remain in the system after TransCanada's departure
She relayed that Deputy Comm ssioner Rutherford had
testified that 15 TransCanada executives were working on
the project. She wondered if the departnent anticipated
holding the individuals in the project. She wondered about
continuity over the comng 6 to 9-nonth peri od.

Conmi ssioner Mers answered that if TransCanada was
termnated it would allow its seconded enployees to stay
until My [2016], which would get the project through the
initial pr e- FEED del i verabl es (not t he ext ended
deliverables) and the analysis between a 48-inch pipe
versus a 42-inch pipe. He expounded that beyond that tine,
the core conpetency would be needed under AGDC or fewer
secondees from the state. He believed the 15 secondees
would conme from the other project conpanies once the
TransCanada |left the project. He noted that the state may
have a few secondees in the structure.

4:08: 08 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon stressed the inportance of project
stability and continuity. She believed it had been Senator
Bi shop and Vice-Chair M cciche had spoken about continuity
and not politicizing the process. She wondered if the
department's fiscal note (if provided) include exenpt
enpl oyees versus non-exenpt enployees to indicate which
positions could nove in and out of the project at a higher
| evel .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Comm ssioner Mers replied that the departnment could
identify which positions were exenpt versus non-exenpt. He
relayed that alnost all of the positions were exenpt and he
did not believe any of the anticipated positions would be
non- exenpt .

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that his only concern about
the TransCanada buyout was over the lack of evidence that
the decision naking processes would be institutionalized.
He did not believe there would be an answer before the bill
was processed, but he believed it needed to be considered
in the future. He opined that the team could |ook very
different in the post-operational phase and could be
significantly reduced. However, there would be an added
burden on the tax enployees who were currently processing
heavi er hydrocarbon and primarily North Slope issues. He
wondered if the departnment would assune it would need an
addi ti onal headcount to account for the other process once
AKLNG becane operational .

Comm ssioner Myers believed that based on the activity the
state had seen wth Arnstrong and Repsol related to new
unitization, provided that the fields went forward, and
with reserves of 500 mllion P1 [proven] and P3 [possible]
of alnost 4 billion barrels, things were noving forward. He
stated that the new units and territory would be very
conplicated. He referred to conventional plays related to

drilling and stated that with the expansions of the Torok
formation at Nuna, new players were comng in and new
drilling was occurring. He detailed that the drilling was

| eading to production and was no |onger only exploratory.
He discussed that the environnental permtting conponents
woul d be huge; he pointed to the Colville R ver delta was
an environnentally sensitive area. He continued that the
state would have to work with partners on the Arctic Slope
and the North Slope Borough. He stressed that bringing the
new units to fruition would take substantial work. He
continued that the state would have to do participating
areas for production and tracked allocation and equity
deci sion maki ng. He enphasized that it was very good news,
but it meant there would be nuch nore work. He stated that
when the industry transitioned from a few large fields to
smal ler fields or expansion of |ess conventional oil sands
with horizontally frack wells there was significant work to
do. He noted that the evolution to snaller, nore spread out
fields (and the large Colville field) would keep DNR s
staff very busy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Comm ssioner Mers discussed that the state still had
active exploration licensing if it chose to continue that
and was successful. He explained that the state wanted to
have the <capacity to do the things <correctly and to
accelerate them He relayed that given his current staff
was stretched thin, he had seriously considered slow ng
dowmn the oil and gas l|ease sales in his current vyear
budget. He elaborated that the environnental permtting
pieces were becoming mnmuch nore difficult for t he
departnent; nuch nore public notice was required and there
was increased acrinony particularly wth respect to recent
| egal cases such as REDOL [Resisting Environmental
Destruction on |Indigenous Lands]. Additionally, there were
new wat er reservation issues for the departnent to address.
In relation to devel opnent, he saw a significant increase
in work would be necessary to do things right. He addressed
that two recent tinber sales had been appealed and were
currently at his level. He stressed the conplexity of the
issues and stated that it was not possible to take
short cuts. Si nul t aneousl vy, the federal permtting was
becom ng nuch nore difficult. He addressed nmaintaining the
state's control in areas such as SMCRA [Surface M ning
Control and Recl amation Act].

Conmi ssioner Myers could not see shrinking the size of DNR
staff because the work |load was increasing. He stressed
that the consequences of doing things poorly neant the
state would be in court indefinitely. He referred to the
department's relationship with the federal governnment and
noted that DNR was adjudicating going to court on water
rights. He reiterated that resource nanagenent was becom ng
nmore difficult for the departnment for a nultitude of
reasons. He stressed the inportance of having the capacity
to do things right. He noted that sone of the staff my
switch roles from |Iess geotechnical roles to nore
environnmental geotechnical roles - working on wetlands
mtigation banks for exanple. He addressed the effort of
coordinating permtting that was done through the
departnment's Ofice of Project Mnagenent and Permtting
(OPMP); however, the office had alnpbst no general fund
left. He stated that coordination was not available if
there were no funds to pay for it. He could see the [AKLNG
project] organization becom ng dramatically smaller, but
other parts of DNR would have to be maintained in order to
address resource devel opnent.

4:14:58 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that although DOR enjoyed
collecting the checks, the revenue was a result of DNR s
| abor. He hoped the |egislature would remain focused on the
fact that DNR was the only true profit center in the state.

Senator Hoffrman queried the proven and potential volune of
natural gas. He also wondered what involvenent DNR had
bet ween a 42-inch and 48-inch pi pe.

Conmi ssioner Myers replied that the resource nunbers were
roughly 6 tcf proven [P1l] at Point Thonson and about 24 tcf
proven at Prudhoe Bay. He noted that the Point Thonmson
nunber coul d be | ar ger. Addi tionally, t here was
approximately 20 tcf proven scattered in a nultitude of
other fields. He relayed that all of the oil fields also
had solution gas (as oil was produced sone of the gas cane
out). Sone of the proven gas was well outside of the
production area and wuld require additional pipeline
infrastructure, which may not be econom c. On  the
undi scovered resource side, a number of people had put out
approximately 200 tcf of conventional (sonme offshore and
some onshore). He stated that the foothills had a very high
probability and nost of the wells hit gas. He explained
that there was a strong indication of a basin center gas
system that nmay be huge (well above 10 tcf). He stated that
the gas was not confined to a single structure, but held in
a broad area; as long as there was sand, gas would be hit.
He continued that the National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska
(NPRA) contained significant gas. He offered to have the
Division of Ol and Gas provide a conplete outlay of the
resour ces.

Comm ssi oner Myers spoke to unconventional resour ces
i ncluding natural gas hydrates, which was currently
estimated at 85 tcf; a significant portion of the anount
was at the Prudhoe Bay, MIlne Point infrastructure. He
communi cated that the departnent was noving toward a 2017
DOE [U. S. Departnent of Energy] and Japanese funded well in
Prudhoe Bay. He relayed that the operators had been very
cooperative working with DOE, the state, USGS [United
States Geol ogi cal Survey], and others. He relayed that if a
sustained technical flow could be sustained out of the
hydrate accunulations it would be a big step forward. He
noted that it was gas that was probably decades away from
bei ng commercial. He conmmunicated that the state was hoping

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



to see success oil success on the Chukchi Sea, but the gas
was estimated at 14 tcf.

4:18: 03 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the pipe size. Conmm ssioner
M/ers replied that currently the state was part of working
with AKLNG to evaluate a 42-inch versus a 48-inch pipeline.
The state would bring in 48-inch pipe for testing. He
rel ayed that a 48-inch pipe was easily expandable to a mnuch
larger level, wth fewer conpressor stations (its base
design required 4 versus 8 conpressor stations, which used
much less fuel gas). He continued that a single-wall
thickness (X-80 pipe) was probably good for the entire
route and was expandable to a mnmuch larger size. He
di scussed that the <cost figures for expansion were
relatively nodest. He reasoned that if it was not done when
the pipeline was built, it wuld never be done. The
di sadvantage of the larger pipe was that if the project was
optim zing for Prudhoe Bay and Point Thomson only, it would
not be done; a 42-inch pipe was optimzed in terns of fuel
use, which would require 8 conpressor stations. He detailed
that expansion to another 800 billion cubic feet (bcf)
would require another 10 stations. He stated that a
conbination of X-80 and X-70 steel may need required. He
relayed that steel was much |ighter weight and easier to
transport, the wdth of the gravel was less and the
devel opnent work on the snaller pipe was further advanced.

Senat or Hof f man wondered what the three nmgjor producers may
see as an advantage and di sadvantage of the different pipe
si zes.

Comm ssioner Mers replied that that from the perspective
of a producer the 42-inch pipe would be optimzed if the
primary goal was production from Prudhoe Bay and Point
Thonmson and if a producer was willing to wait until there
was space available in the pipeline (approximtely 2040) to
put additional gas into the line. Additionally, a 42-inch
pi pe was |ess expensive and the design was further along.
He explained that it depended on what soneone was
optimzing for. He furthered that from the state's
perspective a 48-inch pipe made nore sense when | ooking at
openi ng up t he basin and provi di ng addi ti onal
opportunities. He noted that the issue was not only about
the pipe size, but the terns for expansion. He explained
that if good terns for expansion were achieved, the 42-inch

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



pi pe could be better or acceptable; however, if poor terns
for expansion were achieved, the larger pipe would be
optimal. He noted that sonme of the itens could be mtigated
commercially, but ultinately DNR was appreciative that the
project was doing a full geotechnical analysis of the two
options. He believed it was premature to nake the decision
on the pipe size until the review was conpleted in My
[2016] .

4:21:30 PM

Senator Dunleavy referred to talk about exhausting the
field over a certain period of tinme. He detailed that under
HB 4 [legislation passed in 2013 related to AGDC and the
Regul at ory Commi ssion of Alaska] the idea had been gas for
Al askans first and exporting gas to drive the cost down for
Al askans. He wondered how the concern related to the size
of the pipe and the life of the field. He wondered about
the life of a field under a 36-inch and 42-inch pipeline
scenari o.

Conmi ssioner Mers replied that net present value (NPV)
drove conpanies to nmke the investnents; whether the
i nvestment was the best based on upfront cost and potenti al
revenue. The larger the pipeline, the quicker gas fl owed,
and the nore cash flow early on, wusually neant a higher
NPV. He added that conpanies liked large projects that
provi ded gas early because it made their sharehol ders nore
noney. He discussed that there was a mninum size pipe
needed for a pipeline systemw th an expense structure |ike
AKLNG s to pay back with a regular return to the producers
as well. The larger the pipeline, the cheaper the
transportation costs. He furthered that a project should be
as large as it could, based on the available gas for a
reasonabl e period of tine. He detailed that the payoff was
typically about 25 years for a project |ike AKLNG beyond
25 years, the additional gas that a project my see was SO
far out it had little economc value in relation to the
investnment. He furthered that conpanies |ooked for a "sweet
spot” of volunme and tine frame with gas supplies to back it
up. Conpanies were also doing long-term contracts and
wanted to ensure they had enough gas to neet the contract
needs. He relayed that AGDC had conducted an eval uation of
a 36-inch line and had determined that it was not
commercially conpetitive with other projects in the world.
He explained that the throughput volune had to be |arger.
He continued if a Prudhoe Bay only project that would

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



produce at a lower rate through a 36-inch or 40-inch
pipeline, it did not nmake an econom c cut conpared to other
projects because the cost of delivery was higher. He
furthered that to backstop a 42-inch line with flows of 3.6
[bcf] per day "you mght Iook out of the system to
deliver," but to deliver enough for the full trains of LNG
reserves about the size of those at Prudhoe Bay and Poi nt
Thomson were needed. He continued that at about year 16
Point Thonmson would decline and a gap in capacity would
begin, which was the reason having a basin wth other
potential was inportant. He explained that the project
woul d be built based on warrantying the current supply from
both fields, which would naximze economcs and assure
suppliers the gas would be delivered. He stated that a
smaller pipeline did not really fit the economc criteria
to build a conpetitive project.

4:25:06 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about the horizon on the fields in
terms of years with a 48-inch pipe versus a 42-inch pipe if
Al askans were | ooking for a long-term stable gas supply.

Comm ssioner Mers answered that there would be naximum
production from the two fields for about 16 years wth
declining production to about 25 years and possibly | onger.
He added that new gas would be flowing in fromother fields
gi ven what was known. He relayed that there were certainly
other proven resources that would go into the pipeline
including solution gas on the other fields, gas caps, and
gas from NPRA. He elaborated that other gas would cone in
from the inmmediate infrastructure. He noted that gas from
NPRA was |ikely to come in. He added that the Point Thonson
area had upside as well. Another 20 tcf could conme in from
other known gas resources in Alaska depending on price,
econom cs and tinme. The farther away from the GIP the nore
gas the project would need to bring in (unless the gas was
| ow in carbon dioxide) because a feeder pipeline would need
to be constructed. He explained that there was a mninmm
size of additions that depended on the distance from the
infrastructure.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thanked Conmi ssioner Mers for his

presentation. She relayed that the commttee was excited
about a project for Al aska.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 26 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Vice-Chair Mcciche asked what had been plugged in for an
eval uation of excess |iquefaction capacity. He noted that
with a 42-inch design the project would have nore supply
than |iquefaction. He wondered what was under consi deration
for a 48-inch pipeline. He noted that if in-state use would
not even neet one of the mllineter marks on a yard stick

He asked about the thought process and if DNR was hopefu

soneone was i nterested.

Comm ssioner Myers replied that his understanding was that
the design was being optimzed for offtake. He el aborated
that all three facilities were being designed to naximnm ze
wi nter production and keep production through the existing
trains. He relayed that there was room for another train on
the facility design; another large train would be needed

He believed there was the space and design capacity for an
increnentally wvalid expansion. He was not aware of any
comercial discussions about how it would be triggered.
Secondly, there had been many discussions about spur |ines,
offtake points, and the possibility of a smaller LNG
project in the Cook Inlet region closer to the Mat-Su port.
He noted that there were certainly people interested in
building smaller scale facilities. He discussed how it
would fit into a design and noted that it would not
necessarily take a large increnental expansion. He stated
that conpression would |ikely have to be increased because
of the optimzation for the existing plant. He added that
the sane was true related to |arge anobunts of in-state gas
beyond what was being contenplated. He relayed that the
state's view to date had been that it was a very cheap
option to put the pipe in the ground (once it was in the
ground it was there); however, a |l|iquefaction plant was
much nore challenging, given the cost structure a |arge
expansion would be needed. He stated that one of the
chal I engi ng conponents of the 42-inch pipe was the need for
10 conpressor stations to nake it an economic tranche. He
relayed that it was nmuch easier to do an expansion with the
48-inch pipeline. He stated that it was possible to nobve
700 [mllion cubic feet per day], but it would take a 42-
inch pipe to its maxi mum

4:29: 44 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche noted that Conm ssioner Myers had given
the same horizon with the 42-inch and 48-inch pipe. He
reasoned that it was likely not accurate unless there was
new gas. He stated if an additional 700 [mllion cubic feet

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 27 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



per day] was flowing, it would be nore Iike 18 years versus
25.

Comm ssi oner Myers agr eed. He expl ai ned t hat hi s
presunption was new gas. The only thing |arge enough woul d
be the foothills in a single tranche or the Chukchi, which
was nuch less likely. He opined that it was a play on
having the basis wunder gas and having it developed. He
stated that it was a risk play and he could not say that it
woul d happen. From the producers' perspective it was an
extra cost to the project, but to the state it was a cheap
option for expansion.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked DOL attorney Martin Schultz if he
would be available to present on Friday given tine
constraints associated with the current neeting.

MARTI N SCHULTZ, CHI EF ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, AL, GAS,
AND M NI NG SECTI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW (via tel econference),
agreed to present on Friday.

4:32: 05 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon surmsed that the appropriation in SB
3001 was placing all of the noney into AGXC. She believed
there had been sonme RSA [Rei nbursable Services Agreenent]
transfer of funds issues in the past with DNR and AGDC. She
asked if the departnment was content with the construction
of the appropriation or could the noney go directly to DNR

Ms. Pitney replied that under the construct of the
| egislation direct LNG funds would go to each departnent;
the intent was to have all of the funds show up in the LNG
fund. She noted that in conversations with David Teal
[director of the Legislative Finance Division] there was a
difference in perspective on how it wuld work. The
adm nistration preferred that direct funding would go to
each of the agencies; however, it believed that the RSA
approach would work as well.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon communi cated that direct funding to the
departnments was her preference as well. She relayed that
with the support of the comrittee she would work to
construct a conmittee substitute to directly fund the
departnents. She understood that M. Pitney had expressed
an interest to ensure all of the funding for the project
could be tracked in order to provide transparency. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 28 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



noted that based on her observation RSA transfers could
take a consi derabl e anount of tine. She el aborated that the
issue had been flagged in the commttee's review of the
bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked forward to Conm ssioner Mers'
next update and appreciated his presentation. She noved on
to a presentation by DOR She relayed that the departnent
was requesting $1,381,000 under the legislation. She asked
the department to address how the appropriation would be
used.

4:34:59 PM

DONA KEPPERS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
(via t el econf erence), began by addr essi ng t he
organi zational <chart [State of Alaska AKLNG Integrated
State Gas Tean]. She relayed that she coordinated the work
product and |ed several teans. She pointed to the finance,
fiscals, and property tax columms. She explained that there
were two major work streams dealing with the finance effort
and the property tax effort that was part of a public
process. From a reporting standpoint, the departnent was
requesting $794,000 for personal services as part of the
suppl emental request. She discussed that it was necessary
to look at deliverables to learn how DOR had used its
internal resources. She addressed how the departnent used
its high level resource enployees in the nobst effective
way. The departnment enployed two audit masters fromits Tax
Di vi si on, one commer ci al anal yst, and t he deputy
conm ssioner, who supported a major piece of the work
effort. She relayed that DOR did an enornous anount of
coordi nation and col | aboration dealing with its consultants
(blue boxes on the organizational chart) in the work
streans. The departnment also had an integrated workplace
with its counterparts at AGDC. She elaborated that there
was significant weekly conmunication wth AGCDC, t he
agenci es used the sanme accounting across the areas in order
to have the continuity of know edge to nove information
forward

Ms. Keppers referred to the audit mnmasters and commerci al
anal yst positions and shared the need for a cohesive
knowl edge in order to nove the work products up to
Comm ssi oner Randal | Hof fbeck. She noted that using the Tax
Di vi sion enpl oyees for the AKLNG project had been difficult
on the division because it had taken them away from their

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 29 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



usual work. She explained that funds were included in the
suppl emental request because when DNR s FY 16 budget
request had been cut DOR had not received its piece of an
RSA.

4:38:19 PM

Ms. Keppers pointed to slide 9 of Ms. Pitney's presentation
titled " TransCanada and Pr e- FEED Suppl enent al
Appropriations Sunmary" dated October 2015 (copy on file)
and relayed that DOR s personal services were in a
col | aborative, consulting, and advisory support role to DNR
related to the AKLNG project. She relayed that DOR worked
closely with its consultants and DNR She reiterated that
the work on AKLNG had constrained the Tax Division and the
departnent's overall workload was increasing. She referred
to the departnent's scope of work requirements under SB 138
on slide 8 The slide included a list of itens the
departnent had done and was continuing to work on in FY 16.
She relayed that going forward a nmmjor conponent for the
departnment was related to property tax, the inpact and
benefit of the AKLNG project, naking recomendations to
property tax statute, inpact paynment processes, revenue
distribution, and coordinating with the Minicipal Advisory
Gas Project Review Board (MAGPR). She stated that
coordinating with the MAGPR was a huge piece of stakehol der
work for the departnment, which would continue through the
spring [2016]. Another part of the departnent's invol venent
was related to the financing work. She relayed that the
state's consultants Lazard and Geengate LLC were dealing
with reports and financing options; however, the work
effort was collaborative with DOR She stressed that DOR
was involved in a critical part of project negotiations.
She conmmunicated that the departnent needed to retain its
current resources in order to achieve conmercial agreenents
goi ng forward.

Ms. Keppers addressed the departnent's work related to the
audit of TransCanada devel opnent costs. She expl ained that
there was a travel and audit services conponent DOR was
responsi ble for, which was included in the appropriation
request. Another portion of the DOR request was $500, 000
for a bankability review She explained that the capital
funds would go towards conducting an independent review of
the project comercial structure and the financing plan for
the state. She elaborated that the work represented the
state's due diligence to determne prior to final

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 30 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



i nvestment decision (FID) whether the conmercial structure
and financing plan for the project was bankable. She noted
that the conponent had been added subsequent to the FY 16
budget .

Ms. Keppers referred to questions related to how the
TransCanada audit worked. She referred to an earlier
question about TransCanada final billings and whether the
state was current on the invoices. She relayed that it was
necessary to take a step back. The departnent had gone
through the AG A audit process. She discussed a $330
mllion figure and relayed that there had been an annua

audit; the final audit had been conpleted and extra due
diligence had been conducted to ensure that the invoices
billed by TransCanada were split correctly in regard to
AG A work versus AKLNG work. She remnded the conmttee
that there had been a transition period between the two.
Subsequently, special reports had been run as the AGA
systens had been cl osed.

Ms. Keppers continued that two audits would be conducted

the first dealt with TransCanada's devel opnent costs. She
el aborated that the audit provisions were stipulated in the
Precedent Agreenent (PA) with TransCanada. The state was
about to procure services for the audit and was currently
working with TransCanada on determning the total costs.
She relayed that from an accounting process standpoint
there was no provision in the PA for the state to audit any
TransCanada devel opnent or transporter costs until a notice
of termnation was received. She elaborated that once the
notice was given the state would initiate the audit process
according to the provisions established in the PA She
noted that the audit guidelines in the PA were contractual,
not statutory. She referred to a question about the audit
paynent process and whether any delays would be triggered.
She relayed that the PA did set out the auditing process
and the paynent timng requirenments. The departnent was
currently creating two or three diagrans to walk the
commttee through the tineline, dates, decisions, estinmated
anounts, and interest costs based on timng of decisions.

4:44: 50 PM

Ms. Keppers referred to a question about how the state
woul d chal | enge TransCanada's nunbers as part of the audit
process. She explained that TransCanada's costs were
chal l enged as part of the audit process; anything that was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 31 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



di sputed by the state was placed into an escrow account
established by the parties. The disputed anounts were
determ ned through an executive level dispute resolution
process and paid out within 30 days. She explained that
anything left unresolved would be tried in Al aska court.
She relayed that there was also a joint venture audit done
through AGDC. She deferred any questions related to the
specific audit to AGDC. She concluded that there were three
audits: 1) historical, 2) current, and 3) through the joint
vent ure agreenent.

4:46: 18 PM

Ms. Keppers urged support of the appropriation that would
enable DOR to work through AKLNG commerci al agreenents. She
stressed the inportance of nmaintaining the continuity of
its enployees and consultants in order to bring successfu

agreenents forward. She relayed that the departnent was
working diligently and had very dedicated enployees. She
addressed an earlier question about what would happen goi ng
forward. She detailed that the commercial agreenents needed
to be established in FY 17. The departnent hoped to see a
taper in FY 17; there was staff currently working on
commercial agreenents, which would transition to people
i npl ementing the agreenents. Additionally, there would be
regul atory work. For exanple, the departnment would set up
i npact paynment s, processes, and distribution systens
related to property tax. The departnent was constantly
doing a reassessnment based on where the state was in the
negotiations and the deliverables as specified in the
agreenents. Sone work on the marketing plan was begi nning
in FY 16 with DNR sone collaborative work had been done
with Audie Setters and her group, but the work would
I ncrease.

4:49: 06 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that she was interested in an
update from DOR on the different itens in SB 138.
Speci fically, the comrittee was wondering about the
progress of evaluating the possibility for individual
Al askans to take part in funding the pipeline. She asked if
t he departnent had started work on the issue.

Ms. Keppers replied in the affirmative. She furthered that

with FirstSouthwest and others the departnent had held
conference calls and neetings with corporations and several

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 32 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



muni ci palities. The departnment had spoken with the entities
to gauge their interest on investing in the project. Lazard
had conpiled collected information, which would be included
in its final report. She did not have details on how much
the entities would want to invest and types and ranges of
portfolios. She relayed that the conversation with nultiple
parties had been very engaging. She noted that the Lazard
report would also include a plan on how to nove the effort
forward. She offered to follow up with Lazard to provide
further information to the conmittee.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the progress on the franmework of
how the information may be conpiled. She discussed that
before the passage of SB 138 the involved commttees had
di scussed the idea of a check box for individuals on their
Permanent Fund Dividend. The discussion had considered
whether it would be possible to create the dynamic to allow
i ndi vidual Al askans could purchase shares in a project
going forward  while remai ni ng inside the federa

governnment's commerce |aws. She furthered that the noney
woul d be held for the construction with the hope that the
pi peline would provide a guaranteed rate of return for
Al askans, rmunicipalities, Native corporations, and other
busi nesses.

Ms. Keppers agreed to request the detail from the Lazard
t eam and Fir st Sout hwest .

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon relayed that the conmttee was
interested to know about the legality of the idea.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if there had been discussion
about the idea of establishing investnent corporation
vehicles by the state where shares would be sold or
i ndividuals could invest their noney and the corporation
would hold an interest in the project. Alternatively, he
wondered if the departnent was only | ooking at the idea of
selling bonds to individuals.

Ms. Keppers answered that it was a little early to hold the
di scussion, but she believed that FirstSouthwest and the
Lazard team coul d speak to the options. She would follow up
with the financial consultants.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed that the commttee was anxious
to show support for the project in a nore personal way. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 33 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



relayed that the framework would help the cormmittee to see
if Alaskans would be willing to invest in the project.

4:53:54 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to the departnent's request of
$1, 381,000 and new responsibilities the departnment had been
assigned in relation to the AKLNG project. She |listed
responsi bilities including coordinating MAGPR, negotiating
property tax paynents, and meking reconmendations for
changes to property tax statutes. She reasoned that several
of the responsibilities should be close to fruition or
conpl eted. She wondered why there was no visible cost shift
as opposed to the cost request. She believed nost of the
wor k shoul d be finished.

Ms. Keppers asked for clarification on the question.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon explained that it appeared sone of the
property tax issues asked of DOR were conplete or close to
conpl eti on; however, there were recurring costs inbedded in
the budget to support the activities. She wondered why the
department was requesting additional funds and not wusing
the funds that were already allocated to the positions.

Ms. Keppers answered that the departnent was at a different
phase on the property tax work with the MAGPR Board rel ated
to the inmpact paynment process, creating process, and
working with the board on the allocation and distribution
systens as part of the stakeholder engagenent. She
explained that the property tax issues were comng to
alignnent on a target with the producers, but currently the
departnment was working through the discussions with the
MAGPR Board; therefore, the departnent's work stream had
remai ned the sane and had just shifted to a different type
of work within property tax.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked how many new enployees the
departnment was planning to hire under its personal service
request.

Ms. Keppers replied that DOR could not hire any new
personnel; the departnment was wusing its current audit
masters, commercial analyst, herself, and Comm ssioner
Hof f beck. Additionally, DOR had one enployee who was part
of the North Slope Gas Commercialization Ofice and was
totally dedicated to the AKLNG property tax work. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 34 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



reiterated that the departnment was not able to hire any new
enpl oyees. She elaborated that it would take one to two
years to hire individuals and to train them it would be
very difficult to do.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  asked for clarification on the
suppl enental appropriation request for DOR for $1, 381, 000,
whi ch showed personal service increases of $794,000. She
believed sonme noney was being added to the deputy
commi ssioner allocation. She pointed to page 3 of a
docunent from OMB titled "FY2016 Suppl enental Request for
State Agencies - $13.6 MIIlion" (copy on file).

Ms. Pitney explained the DOR request for $793,000. She
detailed that the individuals under the request had shifted
out of their existing roles to support AKLNG related work

which left divisions wthout the capacity to do their
typical work. The elaborated that the budgeted positions
had been taken out of the work they normally did, reduced
the capacity, and were trying to substitute the work that
was not getting done. She explained that it would have to
be done on a tenporary basis or by contract. She furthered
that the increnents represented what the added requirenent
woul d be going forward. For exanple, the two audit nmasters
had been taken out of the Tax Division and the division did
not have the ability to backfill the positions. The
increnent would enable the Tax Division to bring on
capacity to conduct auditing.

4:59: 38 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon reasoned that the expenditure of $1.4
mllion for DOR was backfilling sonmething. She believed new
enpl oyees nmust be comng in sonewhere. Ms. Pitney replied
that the position focus was $793, 000; the bankability study
was $500, 000, which was contractual and not related to
addi ti onal people; and the related supplies and travel. She
expl ai ned that the funds would go towards the | ost capacity
in the divisions for the enployees being wholly dedicated
to the AKLNG effort.

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to the lost work capacity and
wondered how the work wuld be conpleted if no new
enpl oyees would be hired. She wondered who would do the
work. Ms. Pitney replied that the work would be done either
wi th contractual or tenporary support.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 35 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that a request for a personal
services increnent wusually pertained to bodies. She
wondered if non-pernmanent enployees would be hired. She
reasoned that a fiscal note would provide clarity. She was
aware that the positions would not be full-tine, but
surm sed that sonmeone would have to work the hours. M.
Pitney replied that the intent was to provide capacity to
allow the departnment to conplete its typical work, which
was currently not possible because the individuals had been
assigned to substantial AKLNG rel ated wor K.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon asked for verification that t he
departnment was not planning to hire anyone to conplete the
work. Ms. Pitney answered that a non-permanent position may
be needed, especially related to audit work. She stated
that in the future it would be necessary to restore
capacity to the divisions as the project noved forward.

Senator Bi shop surm sed that the funds could be backfilling
part of the supplenental for the positions that had not
been funded in the regular budget. He noted that sone of
the positions were affiliated with noney that would have
come from DNR [funds were not received due to cuts to the
DNR budget] .

Ms. Pitney responded that there had been an expectation
under DNR s original $13 mllion request that RSA funds
woul d be provided to DOR, however, that had not occurred
Additionally, there had been reductions to DOR, which had
conpounded the capacity | oss.

Co- Chair MacKinnon relayed that the commttee would work
with the Legislative Finance Division to clearly understand
how the noney was flowng to personal and contractual
services. She asked for verification that the $13, 607,000
was a supplenental request related to the expansion and
grow h of the work plan for the pre-FEED stage of the AKLNG
proj ect .

Ms. Pitney asked for clarification.

5:03: 26 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon observed that the bill contained a
TransCanada buyout for around $70 mllion, which included
some form of interest paynment. Additionally, +the bill
contained a work plan to denonstrate the state's desire for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 36 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



an AKLNG project. She noted the intent to approve and fund
the work plan. According to a letter from Governor Wl ker,
the work plan had changed from $511 million to $693 nmillion
and the state was responsible for picking up its share. She
t hought the $13, 607,000 was not only a supplenental for the
state, but a part of the work plan.

Ms. Pitney replied that the $13.7 nmllion was the state's
support related to AKLNG but it was not within the work
pl an budget. She stressed that the state paid cash calls
for the specific AKLNG project. The bill included three
conmponents including the TransCanada buyout; the remaining
cash calls; and the supplenental request for the agencies
to support the commercial agreenents, tax inplications, and
contractual services for law firns associated with the
bankability.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at the capitalization of funds in
Section 1 of the bill, which showed that approximtely $70
mllion would buyout TransCanada. She observed that the
state's portion of the increase in the work plan for pre-
FEED was approximately $74 nillion. She stated that the
third conponent was a supplenental appropriation for
department work to support the project at the state |evel

Ms. Pitney agreed.

Senator Hoffman discussed that the supplenental request
included $144 million for capital; $68 million of the total
request would go to reinbursing TransCanada and $75.6
mllion wwuld go towards funding rermainder of the state's
pre- FEED share. He referred to slide 20 of a DOR
presentation ["TransCanada's AKLNG Participation: Financing
| ssues” dated Cctober 24, 2015 (copy on file)] and
addressed the departnent's reconmendation to use CBR funds
and the earnings reserve fund for the project. He noted
that the CBR was shown as the funding source for SB 3001

He observed that the slide included the option of using
| ong-term financing to be reinbursed once bonds were sold.
He believed that wunder the scenario (on slide 20) the

depart nment was not considering the bill's current
structure, the pre-FEED of $144 nillion, and the FEED of
$675 mllion. He asked about |ong-term financing and al so

wondered if everything was under consideration for direct
appropriations from sources to be determned at a later
dat e.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 37 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Ms. Pitney replied that the $157 mllion to get through FY
16 for the agencies and pre-FEED would be an additional
draw on the CBR There would then be a decision on FEED,
which the administration did not yet have a reconmendation
on. She believed a likely recomendation would be the
concept of a rolling the principal of the FEED cost into a
project revenue bond and having interest only paynents
until a construction decision was reached. She enphasized
that how the state would get through FEED from a financing
standpoint was high on the administration's priority list.
The administration felt that given the current risk I|evel
the pre-FEED would be funded with existing savings. She
added that FEED would entail a larger <cost that the
adm ni stration would want to finance.

5:09:40 PM

Senator Hoffrman referred to slide 20, which eluded to the
fact that the pre-FEED cost of $144 nillion could also be
rolled into the long-term financing. He wondered if the
option was off the table. M. Pitney responded that the
scenario (on slide 20) was a possibility, but this was a
timng issue. She explained that the state had to have the
funds for the upcomng work plan and budget decision in
early Decenber [2015].

Senat or Hoffrman wondered if the decision on rolling in the
pre- FEED cost of $144 mllion needed to be nade prior to
passage of SB 3001. Alternatively, he wondered if the
determ nation could be made at a later date and could be
rolled into |l ong-term financing.

Ms. Pitney believed that the bill did not preclude the
state's ability to finance the portion if desired. She
woul d verify her accuracy.

Senat or Hof f man asked for verification she was referring to
long-termfinancing. Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at Section 2 of the bill that
contained a $5 mllion statutory program receipt request
for field work. She wondered if the state was currently
collecting statutory receipts from its partners for other
itens. Ms. Pitney replied that the request was for a new
concept. She detailed that the state had the ability to
bill and collect funds fromits partners for work that had
been done; the collected funds would revert to the GCenera

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 38 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



Fund. The statutory program receipt authority would allow
the funding to go to AGDC to offset its costs for providing
t he work.

5:12:10 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked why the state would not hold the
amobunt as a credit inside the working group that could
| ater be deducted from noney owed by the state. M. Pitney
agreed to provide that information. She thought M. Dubler
could help answer the distinction between the cash call
conponent and the AGDC organizational work. She believed
the reasoning was that it was AGDC organi zational work that
the project could pay for.

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to the $13 million suppl enental
request. She surm sed that DNR was able to quantify the new
personnel that Alaska was considering taking on. She
believed Senator Dunleavy and others had discussed the
long-term inplications [of bringing on new personnel] when
the state was trying to balance or reduce its budget to a
sustainable level in order to have revenue to support the
budget. She asked for verification that DOR was not
bringing in new state enpl oyees (exenpt or non-exenpt).

Ms. Pitney responded that the positions listed in the

detail were existing positions. She detailed that by
dedicating existing departnent positions to the AKLNG
project, it had left divisions without the capacity to do

their work. She relayed that it was necessary to determ ne
how to ensure that the divisions could get their work
conpl eted. She stated that the work could be done through
short-term full-time tenporary or contract positions. She
added that if the capacity for the AKLNG project extended,
it would require sonme backfill in the divisions.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked M. Pitney to work wth the
Legi slative Finance Division to clarify whether the workers
woul d be tenporary, part-tine, or new state enployees. She
wanted nore clarity on DOR s personal service request.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thanked Ms. Pitney for her testinony.
She addressed the schedule for the week.

SB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 39 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
5:16: 23 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:16 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 40 10/ 27/ 15 3:05 P. M



